
  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 1 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LYON 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
MEETING MINUTES 

July 6, 2004 
 

Approved as submitted August 9, 2004. 
 
DATE:   July 6, 2004 
TIME:  7:00 PM 
PLACE:  58000 Grand River 
 
 
1. Call to Order:  Supervisor Shigley called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call:  Present: Joseph Shigley, Supervisor 

     Patricia Carcone, Treasurer 
     Pamela Johnson, Clerk 
     Steven Adams, Trustee 
     Ray Bisio, Trustee 
     Dan Cash, Trustee 
     Lannie Young, Trustee  

 
                   Also Present:  Matt Quinn, Township Attorney  
      Chris Olson, Township Superintendent 
      Chris Doozan, Township Planner 
      Leslie Boisvenu, Township Engineer 
      Les Cash, Fire Chief 
     
    Guests:  43 
 
4. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
  - Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of June 7, 2004 
  - Approval of Disbursements 
  - Financial Report for May, 2004 
  - Fire Department Monthly Report 
  - Engineer Monthly Report 
  - Zoning Officer Report 
  - Sheriff Department Monthly Report  
  - Building Department Monthly Report 
 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to approve the consent agenda as submitted.  Mr. Bisio supported  
the motion. 

 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Cash, Shigley, Bisio, Carcone, Johnson, Young, Adams 
    Nays: None  
 
 Motion approved. 

 
5.  CALL TO THE PUBLIC ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS  
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 2 

 

 Harold Grove, 28735 Hovey Lane, stated that 75% of the time at least one or two doors are open 
 at Continental Aluminum.  He noted that the doors should be closed at all times.  He stated that 
 odors are still be emitted from Continental.  He stated that the sound issue has been greatly 
 alleviated.  He asked if the procedure for filing complaints is to call Larry Phillips or the Sheriff’s 
 Department.  Mr. Shigley responded that they should call Mr. Phillips’ office. 
 
 Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale, complimented the Firefighters on the great job they did with the 
 Safety Town program. 
 
 Troy Schilling, 57780 Twelve Mile Road, briefly discussed the Board of Review, which he has  
 discussed at the past couple of Board meetings.  He questioned what actions have taken place. 
 Mr. Shigley stated that there is a form in the back of the room that needs to be filled out for any 
 questions.  He stated that once they receive the completed form, it will be forwarded to the  
 appropriate person/people for answering. 
 
 Robin Allen, 28550 Tindale Trail, briefly discussed the special meeting of the Board of Trustees  

regarding unlawful expenditures that took place last Friday.  He stated that it is wrong to call a  
meeting at 6:00 PM on a holiday week-end.  He felt that the information should have been  
discussed at this meeting in lieu of special meeting being called.  He also briefly discussed  
campaign contributions and asked if any of the people running for the open positions accepted 
any campaign contributions. 

 
6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 The following items were added to the agenda: 
  - Executive Session to discuss land acquisition 
 

Mr. Bisio made a motion to approve the agenda as modified.  Mr. Cash supported the motion. 
 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 
7. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
  
 Mr. Shigley thanked Matt Quinn and Chris Doozan for their help in the situation with the trailer 
 park litigation. 
 
 Mr. Shigley stated that Ten Mile Road closed today and the projected dated for re-open is 
 August 30, 2004.   
 
 Mr. Bisio questioned the status of the petition for a reduced speed limit on Chubb Road.  Mr. Olson 
 updated the Board on what the Road Commission is doing about this issue.  There was discussion 
 on this issue, therefore, Mr. Shigley asked if they should make it an agenda item.  Mr. Olson stated 
 that they would need to make a motion to recommend to the Road Commission that the speed 
 limit go all the way through. 
 
 Ms. Johnson stated that the employees at the Township Hall and the citizens of Lyon Township 

received a Plaque for their Sponsorship of The Leukemia & Lymphoma Society Triathlon – Kim  
Maneli, participant.  She stated that the employees and the citizens are very proud of this plaque 
and it will be displayed at the Township Hall. 

 
 Inspection of Polling Places by Paralyzed Veterans of America – Ms. Johnson stated that there was 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 3 

 

 an inspection of all the polling places as required by the Federal Government.  She stated that  
 someone from the Paralyzed Veterans of America went to every polling place with here to inspect 
 them for handicap accessibility.  She stated that the Township rated very well. 
 

Mr. Olson stated that the Township Clerk, Pam Johnson, has received her designation as a certified 
Municipal Clerk after three years of education and ongoing classes.  He stated that the notification 
of this arrived in today’s mail. 
 
Ms. Carcone reminded the residents that the tax bills will be mailed out tomorrow. 
 
Mr. Young updated the Board on what the Road Committee has been working on.  He noted that 
the traffic study on Ten Mile Road is still ongoing. 
 
Mr. Bisio made a motion to add the Chubb Road speed limit issue to the agenda under New  
Business.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 
 
 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 

 
8. Public Hearing for Martindale Road Water Main and Road Improvements Special Assessment 
 District 
 
 Ms. Carcone made a motion to close the regular meeting and open the public hearing for the 
 Martindale Road Water Main and Road Improvements Special Assessment District.  Ms. Johnson 
 supported the motion. 
 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved.   

The regular meeting was closed and the public hearing was opened at 7:21 PM. 
 
 Mr. Quinn explained that the purpose of the public hearing actually involves items 9a and 9b on 
 the agenda this evening.  He stated that the resolution that is in the agenda package determines 
 the sufficiency of petition and the necessity of improvements and is the first issue that will be dealt 
 with in the public hearing.  The total cost of the road and the water improvements is $1,070,121.00. 
 This project is being paid for by one property owner, Jeff Appel.  He noted that the other property 
 owners, although signatories to the petition, are not being assessed. 
 
 Mr. Shigley asked if there were any public comments.  There were no public comments. 
 
 Ms. Carcone made a motion to close the public hearing for the Martindale Road Water Main and  

Road Improvements Special Assessment District and open the regular meeting.  Mr. Cash 
supported  

the motion. 
 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved.   

The public hearing was closed and the regular meeting was opened at 7:23 PM. 
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 4 

 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 a.  Resolution Determining Sufficiency of Petitions and Necessity of Improvements and  
      Designating Special Assessment District – Martindale Road Water Main and Road Improvements 
      Special Assessment District 
 
 Mr. Quinn stated that this resolution is presented this evening setting the cost estimate at  
 $1,070,121.00 for the road improvements, as described in the description, and the water main 
 improvements, as described in the project description, along Martindale Road.  He stated that 
 over the next two months, Giffels-Webster will be obtaining bid estimates and hopefully they will 
 be below the total cost estimate presented tonight.  He stated that Mr. Appel and his company  
 will be notified accordingly.   
 

Mr. Young made a motion to adopt the Resolution Determining Sufficiency of Petitions and  
Necessity of Improvements and Designating Special Assessment District for Martindale Road Water 
Main and Road Improvements Special Assessment District per the language on the form provided. 
Mr. Bisio supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 

 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Cash, Young, Shigley, Johnson, Adams, Bisio, Carcone 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 
 
b.  Resolution Setting Hearing Date on Special Assessment Roll for Martindale Road Water Main & 
     Road Improvements Special Assessment District 
 
Mr. Quinn stated that there is one change on the proposed public hearing date, it should be 
September 7, 2004 in lieu of August 9, 2004.  He stated that this will allow two months for the bidding 
process to occur and then when the roll is set it will be for a specific amount. 
 
Mr. Young made a motion to adopt the Resolution Setting Hearing Date on Special Assessment Roll 
for Martindale Road Water Main and Road Improvements Special Assessment District for 

September 
7, 2004.  Mr. Bisio supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Adams, Shigley, Cash, Bisio, Johnson 
    Nays: Carcone 
  
 Motion approved. 
 
c.  Resolution Concerning U.S. Postal Zip Codes (Motion defeated 3-yes, 3-no regarding advisory 
     question on November ballot) 
 
Ms. Johnson noted that this issue was on last month’s agenda.  She noted that Mr. Young was late 
in arriving for the meeting and that there was no motion to bring this issue back for a second vote. 
She stated that the original vote was a three/three tie, which meant that it was defeated.  She  
stated that she put this back on the agenda for full Board consideration. 
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 5 

 

Ms. Johnson made a motion to reconsider the Resolution Concerning the U.S. Postal Zip Codes. 
Mr. Bisio supported the motion. 
 
 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 
 
Mr. Bisio stated that his concern is that when he addresses a letter he has to put “South Lyon”.  He 
stated that he would rather put “Lyon Township” because that is where he lives.  He stated that he 
does not live in South Lyon.  He stated that he does not want to take anything away from any of  
the residents, he just wants some identity for the Township.   
 
Mr. Adams questioned how many Lyon Township’s are there in Michigan.  Mr. Shigley stated that he 
looked it up on the internet and found that there were two, one was Lyons.  He stated that he is on 
the New Hudson side.  He stated that everyone that he has talked with has indicated that they do 
not want to lose New Hudson. 
 
There was brief discussion as to how the mail is sorted.  Mr. Adams stated that this is Lyon Township 
and felt that they should be recognized.   
 
Mr. Young stated that first of all, they were going to ask the residents about this issue through an 
advisory question on the ballot.  He felt that they should poll the public to get a feel of how they 
feel about this.  He stated that he would like to see a Lyon Township zip code.  He stated that he 
would like to see 48165 changed and called Lyon Township.  He stated that New Hudson could still 
be indicated on things.  He stated that with the growth in the Township, they need to take the first 
steps in designating a Post Office for Lyon Township. 
 
Mr. Bisio stated that they need their own identity.  Mr. Adams stated that if the zip code is put on, 
it will go to the correct Post Office no matter what city is indicated on it.  Mr. Cash stated that the 
Post Office could return it.  He noted that he has tried a couple times putting Lyon Township on  
letters and they went through without a problem. 
 
Mr. Shigley stated that he would like to see New Hudson maintained, basically because he has  
lived here for over 40 years and knows the history.  He stated that the Post Office has been very 
good about delivering mail even if there is only a zip code listed.  He stated that he will be  
supporting maintaining New Hudson. 
 
Ms. Carcone stated that she collects the taxes and it is very difficult in her department when  
someone calls regarding their taxes.  She stated that New Hudson is not an entity, it is only a  
Post Office.  She stated that it would be nice if they had their own identity.  She noted that the 
Fire Department has had some issues also with this. 
 
Mr. Bisio stated that they have to simplify the process and that he agrees with Ms. Carcone’s 
comments regarding this.  He felt that this situation will get more difficult as the Township grows. 
 
Mr. Adams questioned if they could have someone from the Post Office come in and discuss this 
with the Board.  Ms. Johnson stated that she has talked to the New Hudson Postmaster, who  
indicated that they are not opposed to this resolution in this form.  She stated that the Postmaster 
was very concerned, in the beginning, that the Board was going to consolidate the zip codes into 
one.  She indicated that at this time, the Postmaster is not in favor of consolidating to one zip code. 
 
Mr. Young stated that he is opposed to this resolution as it is written.  He stated that he would like to 
see Board do something to get it in a proper form so that it can be on the ballot in November.  He 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 6 

 

stated that they are running out of time.  There was brief discussion as to the language that should  
be on the ballot.   
 
Mr. Young questioned when the deadline is to get something on the ballot.  Mr. Olson responded 
that it would have to be to the County by August 23, 2004.  He stated that the Board has another 
meeting before the deadline, but felt that they need to come to a consensus here first, if this is 
truly the direction that the Board wants to take. 
 
Mr. Cash stated that they could have a motion to put a question on the ballot and then at the 

 August meeting they could determine what the question is.  He stated that this way all the  
 residents would have a say in this issue.  He stated that he is not sure of what the question is yet. 
 The motion that was denied at the last meeting was to have a question put on the ballot. 
 
 Mr. Bisio stated that he felt that they probably need to do more research on this issue.  He stated 
 that he did not believe that there is a rush to get it on the ballot in November.  He stated that 
 eventually they will have to solve this concern, but did not feel that there is a rush. 

 
Mr. Shigley made a motion to place an advisory question on the November ballot changing the 
New Hudson zip code designation of 48165 to Lyon Township, 48165.  Mr. Young supported the  
motion.  
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  Ms. Carcone 
suggested that they should try to put together a sub-committee to do some more research on this 
issue.  Ms. Johnson stated that she likes Ms. Carcone’s idea of a sub-committee.  She stated that 
they don’t know how the different Postmasters are going to react to what they are trying to do.   
She stated that she still feels strongly that all five designations within the Township should be Lyon 
Township with one zip code, but reality is that it is not going to happen.  She stated that the reason 
she voted against this last time was the resolution did not do enough.  Mr. Shigley asked if there  
were any public comments.   
 
Shirley Baker, 27239 Stancrest, stated that if there is no city name indicated but a zip code was on 
there, you will get the letter.   

 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Bisio, Young, Carcone, Cash 
    Nays: Johnson, Shigley, Adams 
 
 Motion approved. 

 
d.  Award Fire Department Stations Signs Bids 
 
Tim Blackwood, Fire Department, explained that at the last meeting he presented a proposal for 
signs at both fire stations.  The Board indicated that they would like a proposal brought back for 
a sign that fit within the Township Ordinances so that a variance would not be necessary.  He  
stated that he has received the amended proposal for the signs.  The total cost of the signs will 
be $15,908.00. 
 
Ms. Carcone made a motion to approve the proposal from CVC, Custom Visual Creations, for the 
purchase of two signs for Fire Station No. 1 and Fire Station No. 2 in Lyon Township in the amount of  
$15,908.00, to be taken out of the Fire Millage Fund.  Ms. Johnson supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  Mr. Bisio  
stated that signs are a good idea, but he can’t go along with the amount of money that they are 
proposing to spend on the signs.  There was discussion with regard to what the millage money can 
be used for and what it cannot be used for.  Mr. Bisio stated that he would be in favor of this, if it  



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 7 

 

wasn’t so costly. 
 
Mr. Blackwood stated that the original proposal that was brought to the Board was $3,000.00  
cheaper.  The requested certain changes be made to the sign, which increased the price. 
 
Mr. Adams stated that he concurs with Mr. Bisio.  He stated that spending $16,000 at this time  
sends a wrong message to the residents.  He stated that the stations do indicate what they are. 
He stated that revenue sharing is going down and to spend $16,000 just because it is there, he has 
a problem with this.  He stated that if this money can’t be used for maintenance, then it should be 
given back. 
 
Mr. Blackwood stated that they get people stopping by the station everyday asking where the  
Building Department is.  He stated that the signs were part of the original plans for the buildings 
when they were built.  He questioned what kind of a message it would send to the residents if they 
don’t complete the buildings from the original plans.   
 
Mr. Adams stated that the new Novi Fire Station has a wood sign in front of it.  He stated that they 
should use the money for other things, like connecting to sewer and water for Fire Station No. 2 or 
possibly use it toward the building of another fire station.  He stated that he is totally against  
spending the money for these signs.  He felt that they should use it for something practical. 
 
Mr. Young questioned the amount of money that is in the fund that would pay for these signs. 
Ms. Carcone responded that there is $300,000 in the fund.  Mr. Young indicated that these funds 
are very limited as to what they can be used for.  He stated that he appreciates the fact that 
Mr. Blackwood brought this back complying with the ordinances.   
 
Mr. Cash noted that the Methodist Church and the Veterinary Hospital on Ten Mile are both 
putting in one of these signs. 
 
Ms. Johnson stated that with Safety Town they had a lot of parents stopping at the Township Hall 
because they could not find the Fire Station. 
 
Mr. Bisio stated that he is not opposed to the signs, he is opposed to the cost of the signs.  He felt 
that they need to get more estimates.  Mr. Blackwood stated that they went out for bid and only 
received two bids, this one and one for $17,500.00. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any public comments.   
 
Ted Soper, 27565 T.F. Hicks, agreed with Mr. Bisio.  He stated that it seems like this is a lot of money. 
He stated that the public needs to understand what type of sign this is.  He stated that he feels that 
there is a need for a sign, but would question the $8,000.00 for a sign without knowing the type of  
sign that is being proposed. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Carcone, Cash, Johnson 
    Nays: Adams, Bisio, Shigley 
 
 Motion approved. 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 a.  Resolution of Tentative Declaration of Intention to Make Improvements for the Belladonna 
      Drive Sanitary Sewer Special Assessment District 
 
 Mr. Quinn stated that the Township received petitions from residents along Belladonna Drive 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 8 

 

 requesting the creation of a sanitary sewer special assessment district.  The petitions were signed 
 by 79.4% of the total land area within the boundaries.  The total area is a little over 60 acres and  
 the signers of record represent almost 48 acres.  He stated that the resolution presented this 
 evening basically declares the Township’s tentative intention to make these improvements and to 
 solidify the cost estimate of $291,250.00.  This will also set up the first public hearing for August 9, 
 2004. 
 
 Ms. Boisvenu displayed a map of the site and explained the type of sewer that will be installed. 
 
 Mr. Quinn stated that also offered within the sanitary sewer project is that the property owners 
 may purchase REU’s within the SAD and their property would be assessed for those particular 
 purchases.  He stated that this cost figure is only valid provided that the roll is confirmed prior to 
 December 31, 2004.  He stated that beginning January 1, 2005 the purchase price will increase by 
 the eleven bond index.  He stated that if they miss this opportunity and decide to purchase  
 later, then they would pay whatever price is in effect at that time. 
 
 Mr. Young made a motion approve the Resolution of Tentative Declaration of Intention to Make 
 Improvements for the Belladonna Drive Sanitary Sewer Improvement Special Assessment District 
 with the figures and form provided.  Mr. Adams supported the motion. 
 
 Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  Ms. Carcone 
 stated that these are individual homeowners and she wants to make sure that they really  
 understand what they are paying for.  Mr. Quinn stated that the homeowners will be here for three 
 public hearings and will certainly know by the end.  He noted that the petition was signed by eight 
 out of twelve property owners. 
 

Mr. Shigley asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 
 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Cash, Shigley, Adams, Bisio, Carcone, Young, Johnson 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 

b.  Quadrants Industrial Research Centre – Amendments to Approved Condominium dated 
     4/20/04. 

 
 Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 
 May 27, 2004 regarding this issue. 
 
 Mr. Adams made a motion to approve AP-04-16, Quadrants Industrial Centre, amendments  
 subject to the conditions cited in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated May 27, 2004. 

Ms. Johnson supported the motion. 
 

Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  Mr. Cash 
questioned if Mr. Clark purchased the Gafka property.  Mr. Clark responded that they did. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 

 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Bisio, Shigley, Adams, Johnson, Carcone, Young, Cash 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 

  
c.  Request to Rezone 17.988 Acres Located at the south end of Helene Drive and east of the 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 9 

 

     Huron Valley Trail from I-2, General Industrial, to RM-2, Multiple Family Residential – 
     AP-03-42, William Clark, applicant 

  
 Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 
 May 18, 2004 regarding this issue. 
 
 Mr. Adams made a motion to approve AP-03-42, Request to Rezone 17.988 acres from I-2, General 
 Industrial, to RM-2, Multiple Family Residential.  Mr. Bisio supported the motion. 
 

Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  Mr. Adams 
stated that the reason he made a motion to approve this is that they want to revitalize the  
downtown area.  He stated that this cannot be done without people.  He stated that if you look 
at other successful downtown areas, i.e., Plymouth, Northville, Brighton, they have people who  
reside in these areas and help make them successful.  He stated that the Master Plan is a great 
document but it can change for what is going on in today’s climate and for what the Township 
is trying to do. 
 
Mr. Bisio stated that all the discussions that they have had among the Board, Planning 
Commission and ZBA indicated that the Township needs people in the downtown area.  He  
stated that this is probably one of the best areas for this development. 
 
Mr. Shigley stated that he does not support multiple family but does support jobs for the  
community.  He stated that he would prefer not to have apartments.  He briefly discussed the 
DDA’s Master Plan.  Mr. Doozan noted that the DDA’s Master Plan for this area indicates high 
density residential.  He stated that this does not necessarily mean that it will be apartments, it 
could be condominiums.  He stated that the Planning Commissioners share Mr. Adams point of 
view, but the issue is a matter of timing.  He stated that they still have to reach a point where the  
Township Board, the Planning Commission and the DDA all agree that this is the plan for this area.   
He felt that if they were to have a vibrant downtown area, they would need the density in order to  
make it work.   
 
Ms. Carcone stated that she does want to see some population in the downtown area.  This is the 
vision that she has.  She stated that she would prefer to see a PD so that they have control over 
what is going in there.  She stated that she would like to see the ring road completed before this is 
done.  She felt that rezoning this property is too early. 
 
Mr. Cash stated that he is not opposed to changing the zoning from industrial.  He stated that he  
would rather see this go through as a PD.   
 
Mr. Young stated that he agrees that they can’t have industrial downtown.  He stated that if they 
are going to have a downtown, they need the rooftops.  When the Master Plan was adopted they 
didn’t know about the ring road.  He felt that the ring road is a key issue.  He stated that this is 
moving so quick and the Planning Commission has not determined what theme they would like to 
see in the downtown area.  He stated that in order for the Township to have any control, he would 
like to see this as a PD.  He stated that in concept, multiple is the right use for this site.  He was 
concerned that if they just rezoned the property they would not have any control as to what goes  
in there. 
 
Robert Carson, Attorney, stated that he feels that they all agree that residential and industrial do 
not go together.  He stated that they do have an industrial tenant ready to go, but his client felt 
that multiple family residential was a better way to go for the downtown area, therefore, they  
have brought forward the rezoning request.  He noted that if this site goes industrial at this time it  
will wipe out 1/4 of the potential residential population area for the downtown area.  
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 10 

 

Mr. Carson noted that the proposed development would be “For Sale” condominiums in the  
$150,000 to $180,000 price range. 
 
Mr. Carson stated that the Planning Commission voted 4 to 3 against this.  He stated that it was 
his understanding that the Commissioners who voted against this did not have a problem with the 
multiple family designation, the concern was more about the location of the ring road.  He stated 
that since this time the ring road will go around this development.  He stated that the Board has  
the opportunity to create a circumstance that will rise to the dynamics that are necessary to have 
a downtown area, which is multiple residential.  He stated that they need bodies and energy,  
people walking around and spending money in the downtown area.  He stated that if the Board 
allows industrial to go in here, they will wipe out the area for residential that will service the  
downtown area.  He stated that it would be a tremendous loss to the Township to put industrial in 
this location. 
 
Mr. Carson further discussed the ring road location.  He stated that there was no doubt in their mind 
that the ring road would approximate this piece of property.  He stated that it was going to go to  
the east of this piece and possibly hit it on one side.  He stated that subject to engineering, they  
now know that the ring road is going to go east of this piece and swing around and barely touch 
this piece on the south.  He stated that there is no way that a downtown development will be  
successful by allowing industrial uses. 
 
Mr. Carson stated that with him this evening is William Clark, Quadrants, and Brad Strader, LSL, that 
can speak to any of the issues raised. 
 
Mr. Bisio stated that Mr. Carson indicated that these would be $150,000 condos.  Mr. Carson stated 
that he was speaking of the number of units.  He stated that these condos will be $200,000 to  
$300,000. 
 
Mr. Carson stated that with regard to a PD, this is not a 40 acre site.  Mr. Cash stated that the 40 
acre requirement can be waived.  Mr. Carson stated that when you consider all the cost and time 
that is associated with the PD process, there is substantially more cost that would be incurred.  He 
stated that this would not have the features that the Township wants that would go with a PD.  He 
stated that they would like to get going on this development as soon as possible. 
 
Mr. Young questioned if any type of architecture has been settled upon yet.  Mr. Carson 

responded 
that they have not, but they are committed to building a quality development. 
 
Mr. Olson stated that there is a considerable amount of woodlands on the parcel and questioned if 
any of them would be preserved.  Mr. Carson stated that he believes that the Township creates 
incentives to pay attention to the woodlands.  Mr. Olson stated that this would be under a PD. 
 
Ms. Johnson asked Mr. Clark if he is intending on developing this site himself or is he planning on  
selling it, if it is rezoned.  Mr. Clark responded that it will be developed in conjunction with a  
developer who is highly recognized in this field.  It will be a joint venture.  Mr. Bisio questioned who  
the developer is.  Mr. Clark responded that he is not able to disclose this information at this time. 
 
Mr. Cash stated that if this rezoning is approved, things could happen and the property could be 
sold.  He stated that the next person coming in could put in apartments and the Township would  
have no control over it.  He stated that this is why he would push for a PD.  Mr. Carson stated that 
they have an industrial user that is ready to go forward today.  He stated that this would not have 
to come before the Board for a rezoning.  He stated that Mr. Clark is not going to throw out his 
credibility in the Township for a 17 acre parcel.  He stated that Mr. Clark came in with this project 
so that the DDA could be enabled.  He stated that the theory is for the DDA to go forward and  



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 11 

 

not have something that would be a significant setback to it.  He stated that there will still be a  
number of other approvals that they will have to go through. 
 
Mr. Young asked Mr. Carson if they are willing to participate in a SAD for the ring road.  Mr. Carson 
responded that they do not feel that it would be appropriate for them to volunteer to help pave a 
section of the ring road at this time.  He stated that they would be happy to discuss this, but does  
not want to make any commitments.   
 
Brad Strader, LSL, stated that he does understand the preference for a PD project.  He noted that 
a PD is a very long, drawn out process.  He briefly discussed the traffic issues.  He stated that they 
need residential in the downtown area to support it, industrial won’t do it.  
 
Mr. Young stated that what he would like to do is have more control so that they would know that 
if Mr. Clark were to sell this property tomorrow, the Township would have some control over what 
is going to be put there.  He stated that if they are not going to have this, then he will have to  
weigh, in his mind, the prospect of an industrial use on this side of the proposed ring road.  He  
stated that he hopes that things will work out with Mr. Clark so that they will get something that 
is pleasing to everybody. 
 
After a further brief discussion, Mr. Shigley asked if there were any public comments.   
 
Mr. Quinn noted that the agenda indicates that it is a First Hearing for both the rezoning requests. 
He stated that this is incorrect.  The Board either approves or denies rezoning requests at the time 
that they appear before for them.  He stated that the Board’s action tonight is either to approve 
of deny the rezoning. 
 
Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road, stated that she has pros and cons for this project.  One of 
the pros are that she likes to see high density close to the expressway.  She stated that she likes 
the idea of people walking around downtown.  She noted that this is one of the things that makes 
downtown Ann Arbor look alive.  She stated that she is concerned about some of the statements 
that have been made about the ring road surrounding this property.  She questioned how people 
would cross the ring road.  She stated that some of the cons are that she is very adamant about 
the Master Plan and sticking to it.  She felt that if for some reason the Master Plan is not adequate 
for this area, then it should probably be revisited and modified.  She stated that the Township does 
not have any control over a straight rezoning.  She stated that the developer can promise the 
world, but that the Township is kind of at their mercy.  She stated that the ring road is not finalized 
yet, and felt that they should look at this, revisit the Master Plan and then have this development 
come back for a vote. 
 
Troy Schilling, 57780 Twelve Mile Road, stated that there have been a lot of good comments made 
tonight both for and against this development.  He stated that the thing that keeps sticking in his 
head is the fact that it feels that there is a gun pointed with them saying either we do this or there 
will be industrial.  He felt that a decision should not be made under those terms.   
 
John Hicks, 29393 Tonester Circle, stated that scary thing to him is that there is potential industrial 
use abutting up to this property.  He stated that they could even have outside storage of cranes  
right next door. 
 
Mr. Strader briefly discussed the two access points.  He noted that this development can work with 
just one access, there are ways that this can be accomplished. 

 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Johnson, Shigley, Adams  
     Nays: Carcone, Cash, Young, Bisio 
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 12 

 

  Motion failed. 
 
 d.  Request to Rezone 177.53 Acres Located on the west side of Pontiac Trail and north of Eleven 
        Mile Road from R-1.0, Residential-Agricultural to PD, Planned Development – AP-03-38, Multi 
      Building Company applicant, Saddle Creek, Planned Development 
 

Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 
June 25, 2004 regarding this issue. 
 
Mr. Bisio made a motion to take a five minute break.  Ms. Johnson supported the motion. 
 
 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
    Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 
The meeting resumed at 9:25 PM.  Rick Genrich, Multi-Building Company, stated that they are 
requesting final approval on their proposed PD.  He stated that the plan does remain relatively 
unchanged since the first time they have been before the Board.  He explained the changes that 
they have made to the plan. 
 
Ms. Carcone questioned if the residents of this development would be allowed to have their own 
pools since there is going to be a community pool.  Mr. Genrich responded that the residents will 
be allowed to have their own pools. 
 
Mr. Young questioned if the conservation easement has been established.  Mr. Genrich responded 
that it has not been executed but they have been forwarding drafts back and forth.  Mr. Quinn 
stated that the way that the agreement will work is that the Homeowner’s Association will be 
responsible for the maintenance after the developer turns it over to them.  The maintenance will 

be 
at the Homeowner’s Association cost. 
 
Mr. Bisio questioned the price range of the homes.  Mr. Genrich responded that they will be  
$300,000 to $400,000 and up.  He displayed a color rendering of one of the homes that they will be 
building in this development. 
 
Mr. Quinn stated that with regard to the conservation easement, they have been working with the 
developer’s Counsel regarding the requirements of the Oakland County Drain Commission.  He  
stated that the Drain Commission is requiring that the developer grant a right-of-way to the Drain 
Commission for maintenance of the drain.  He stated that the drain runs all the way through this 
section.  He stated that from time to time there may be things removed from the conservation 
easement by the Drain Commission as it pertains to the maintenance of the drain. 
 
Mr. Quinn stated that with regard to the PD Agreement, it will be as recommended approved  
subject to his final approval.  He stated that he has gone through this and 99.9% of all the language 
that is in the final draft that he has is okay.  He stated that the signators won’t be determined until  
the last minute.  He noted that Lyon Development does not own the property yet, they will be 
closing on the property in August.  He stated that this could be signed by part of the Friedlaender 
family.  He stated that he will make sure that this gets signed by the appropriate parties. 
 
Mr. Quinn stated that the action by the Board tonight is to approve the rezoning and the PD 
Agreement subject to the conditions set forth in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter. 
 
Mr. Bisio made a motion to approve the rezoning of the 177.53 acres located on the west side of 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 13 

 

Pontiac Trail and north of Eleven Mile Road from R-1.0, Residential-Agricultural, to PD, Planned 
Development, AP-03-38 subject to the conditions cited in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter 
dated June 25, 2004, review by Legal staff and all utility approvals.  Ms. Carcone supported the  
motion. 

 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments.   
 
Troy Schilling, 57780 Twelve Mile Road, questioned how many homes will be in this development. 
Mr. Quinn responded that there will be 252 homes. 
 
Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road, questioned the amount of buffer from the road.  Steve Deak, 
Robert Leighton Associates, responded that there is a 100’ minimum buffer from the right-of-way. 
Ms. Hollon questioned if all the trees in the right-of-way will remain.  Mr. Deak responded that other 
than the ones that are removed for whatever improvements need to be made per the County 
and Township standards.  He noted that they have submitted a landscape plan that is similar to the 
Ten Mile plan design to augment what has to be removed. 
 
Mr. Quinn stated that the motion indicated “subject to utility approvals”.  He questioned why this 
was included.  Mr. Olson responded that it is for utility access.  He noted that they development  
cannot be done without utilities.  Mr. Quinn noted that this is already in the PD Agreement. 

 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Shigley, Adams, Carcone, Cash, Young, Johnson, Bisio   
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 
 e.  Final Preliminary Plat for Tanglewood Grenelefe West Subdivision, AP-03-25, Freund Associates 
 

Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 
June 25, 2004 regarding this issue.    
 
Mr. Adams questioned what is going on with the landscaping.  Bob Freund responded that at the 
Planning Commission meeting the President of the Grenelefe Condo Association wanted some 
additional help with some trees that were planted on the berms behind the condos.  He stated 
that he was caught off guard at the Planning Commission meeting regarding this and possibly 
did not answer this very well.  He briefly discussed what happened with this.  He stated that if the 
people will identify which pine trees they are not happy with, he will be happy to remove them. 
He stated that they usually buy trees in the Fall and indicated that the Association can come by  
and pick whatever trees that they might want from there. 
 
Mr. Bisio noted that at the Planning Commission level they did discuss the paving to the entrance 
at Ten Mile and Currie Road.  Mr. Olson stated that updates are being prepared and this was 
discussed at the last Road Committee meeting.  Mr. Freund stated that the commitment from 
Freund Associates is that whenever this gets pulled together, they are available to work with the 
Township on this.  He stated that they are not evading this issue, they do intend on working on this 
with the Township. 
 
Mr. Young made a motion to approve the final Preliminary Plat for AP-03-25, Tanglewood Grenelefe 
West Subdivision, along with the Easements, Covenants and Restrictions as indicated in the  
McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated June 25, 2004.  Mr. Adams supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments from the Board on the motion.  There were none. 
He then asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 14 

 

 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Carcone, Bisio, Cash, Shigley, Johnson Adams 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 
 f.  First Reading of Ordinance pertaining to Grease Interceptors 
 
 Mr. Quinn stated that this is an ordinance requested by the Engineers and the Superintendent to 
 protect the integrity of the sewage disposal system.  He stated that this requires that any entity 
 that are defined in A, mostly restaurants and other food preparers, to be required to have grease 
 interceptors.  They would also have to verify that they are cleaned out and post a maintenance 
 and repair log.  The contents would also have to be verified that it has been tested.  This ordinance 
 also provided for penalties.  
 
 Mr. Olson briefly discussed some of the problems that the Township has recently had with this  
 problem.  Ms. Boisvenu stated that they have worked with Earth Tech on this problem.  She 
 explained the difference between a grease interceptor and a grease trap. 
 
 Mr. Young made a motion to approve the first reading of the Ordinance pertaining to Grease 
 Interceptors in the form provided.  Mr. Bisio supported the motion. 
 

Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments. 
 
Les Cash, Fire Chief, stated that even he is totally lost as to what to do for cleaning out these 
interceptors.  He stated that they were never given any instructions as to what to do. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Cash, Carcone, Young, Bisio, Adams, Shigley, Johnson 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 

 
 g.  Resolution for Reimbursement of expense for West Nile Virus Protection  
 
 Mr. Olson stated that they received a notice after the last Board meeting that the County Board 
 of Commissioners had adopted by resolution a West Nile Virus Disbursement Policy for Fiscal Year 

2004.  He noted that the dollar amount is virtually the same as last year.  There was a letter and 
information provided in the Board’s packets this evening.  He stated that he basically took last 
year’s resolution and adjusted it for 2004.  He stated that they have purchased larvae inhibitors 
and explained where they have been placed within the Township.    

 
 Ms. Carcone made a motion to adopt by resolution to establish a West Nile Virus Program  
 between Oakland County and Lyon Township in addressing mosquito control activity. 
 Ms. Johnson supported the motion. 
 

Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 

 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes:  Johnson, Shigley, Young, Carcone, Bisio, Cash 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 15 

 

 h.  Speed Limit on Chubb Road 
 
 Mr. Olson stated that this is a case of the Board, as an elected body, expressing their desire for 
 the entire length of Chubb Road from Eight Mile to Ten Mile having a speed limit of 25 miles per 
 hour in lieu of the unmarked speed limit of 55 miles per hour.  There was brief discussion and the 
 consensus of the Board was to have the speed limit changed to 25 miles per hour. 
 
 Mr. Young made a motion to that the Lyon Township Board of Trustees request that the Road 
 Commission change the speed limit on Chubb Road between Eight Mile and Ten Mile Roads be 
 changed to 25 miles per hour due to safety issues and the conditions of the road.  Mr. Bisio  

supported the motion. 
 

Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments.   
 
Shirley Baker, 27239 Stancrest, stated that there are two major roads that go through the Township, 
Napier Road and Pontiac Trail.  She noted that there are three roads that go from Eight Mile Road 
to Ten Mile Road, Chubb Road, Currie Road and Griswold Road.  She stated that these are not 
residential streets, they are major roads.  She stated that these are not subdivision streets and  
will never be subdivision streets.  She stated that once this goes to 25 miles per hour, how will it 
ever be changed back.  Mr. Olson stated that a study can be done and the speed limit can be 
changed accordingly.  She felt that 25 mile per hour is foolish. 

 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Carcone, Adams, Johnson, Cash, Young, Bisio 
     Nays: Shigley 
 
  Motion approved. 
 
11. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA FOR ACTION OR DISCUSSION   NONE 
 
12. EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS PROPERTY ACQUISITION 
 
 Mr. Bisio made a motion to close the regular meeting an go into an Executive Session. 
 Ms. Carcone supported the motion.  
 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved.  The regular meeting was closed at 10:06 PM. 
 
 Ms. Carcone made a motion to re-open the regular meeting.  Mr. Bisio supported the motion. 
 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved.  The regular meeting was re-opened at 10:18 PM. 
 
 Mr. Adams resolved to purchase, for not more than $1,000, parcel 21-03-128-001.  Mr. Bisio  
 supported the motion. 
 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Bisio, Shigley, Carcone, Adams, Cash, Johnson 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       July 6, 2004      Page 16 

 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Ms. Carcone made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Ms. Johnson supported the motion. 
 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 

Motion approved.  The meeting was adjourned at 10:20 PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Deby Cothery 
 
Deby Cothery       Pamela Johnson    
Recording Secretary      Clerk   
 


	 District

